



# RULE-MAKING ORDER PERMANENT RULE ONLY

## CR-103P (December 2017) (Implements RCW 34.05.360)

CODE REVISER USE ONLY

OFFICE OF THE CODE REVISER  
STATE OF WASHINGTON  
FILED

DATE: March 01, 2024

TIME: 2:43 PM

WSR 24-06-051

Agency: Health Care Authority

**Effective date of rule:**

**Permanent Rules**

- ☒ 31 days after filing.  
☐ Other (specify) \_\_\_\_\_ (If less than 31 days after filing, a specific finding under RCW 34.05.380(3) is required and should be stated below)

**Any other findings required by other provisions of law as precondition to adoption or effectiveness of rule?**

- ☐ Yes ☒ No If Yes, explain:

**Purpose:** The agency is amending WAC 182-508-0001 and 182-512-0920 to remove the maximum age restriction for apple health for workers with disabilities (HWD) categorically needy (CN) coverage. This change is consistent with amendments made to RCW 74.09.540 and WAC 182-511-1050 effective January 1, 2020. The agency is making additional amendments to 182-512-0920 to remove outdated HWD income limitation language.

**Citation of rules affected by this order:**

New:

Repealed:

Amended: 182-508-0001, 182-512-0920

Suspended:

**Statutory authority for adoption:** RCW 41.05.021, 41.05.160

**Other authority:** RCW 74.09.540

**PERMANENT RULE (Including Expedited Rule Making)**

Adopted under notice filed as WSR 24-03-022 on January 5, 2024 (date).

Describe any changes other than editing from proposed to adopted version:

Proposed/Adopted	WAC Subsection	Reason
WAC 182-512-0920(5)(a)		
Proposed	(a) Less than or equal to one-half of the federal benefit rate (FBR), no income is deemed to the applicant. Compare the applicant's countable income to the one-person SSI categorically needy income level (CNIL) described in WAC 182-512-0010. For health care for workers with disabilities (HWD) applicants, compare to the one-person HWD standard described in WAC 182-505-0100 (1)(c).	The agency is removing outdated information from this rule. The removed language is no longer relevant because the health care for workers with disabilities program does not have an income limit.
Adopted	(a) Less than or equal to one-half of the federal benefit rate (FBR), no income is deemed to the applicant. Compare the applicant's countable income to the one-person SSI categorically needy income level (CNIL) described in WAC 182-512-0010. ((For health care for workers with disabilities (HWD) applicants, compare to the one-person HWD standard described in WAC 182-505-0100 (1)(c).))	
WAC 182-512-0920(5)(b)		

Proposed	(b) Greater than one-half of the FBR, then the entire nonapplying spouse's countable income is deemed to the applicant. Compare the applicant's income to the two-person SSI CNIL. For HWD applicants, compare to the two-person HWD standard described in WAC 182-505-0100 (1)(c).	The agency is removing outdated information from this rule. The removed language is no longer relevant because the health care for workers with disabilities program does not have an income limit.
Adopted	(b) Greater than one-half of the FBR, then the entire nonapplying spouse's countable income is deemed to the applicant. Compare the applicant's income to the two-person SSI CNIL. <del>((For HWD applicants, compare to the two-person HWD standard described in WAC 182-505-0100 (1)(c).))</del>	
<b>WAC 182-512-0920(6)</b>		
Proposed	(6) When income is not deemed to the SSI-related applicant from the nonapplying spouse per subsection (5)(a) of this section: (a) Allow all allowable income deductions and exclusions as described in chapter 182-512 WAC to the SSI-related applicant's income; and (b) Compare the net remaining income to the one-person SSI CNIL or the one-person HWD standard.	The agency is removing outdated information from this rule. The removed language is no longer relevant because the health care for workers with disabilities program does not have an income limit.
Adopted	(6) When income is not deemed to the SSI-related applicant from the nonapplying spouse per subsection (5)(a) of this section <del>((:</del> <del>((a)))</del> , <u>allow</u> all allowable income deductions and exclusions as described in chapter 182-512 WAC to the SSI-related applicant's income <del>((;</del> <u>and</u> <del>((b)))</del> , <u>and compare</u> the net remaining income to the one-person SSI CNIL <del>((or the one-person HWD standard))</del> .	
<b>WAC 182-512-0920(7)(c)</b>		
Proposed	(c) Add together the net unearned and net earned income amounts and compare the total to the two-person SSI CNIL described in WAC 182-512-0010 or the two-person HWD standard described in WAC 182-505-0100 (1)(c). If the income is equal to or below the applicable two-person standard, the applicant is eligible for apple health CN health care coverage.	The agency is removing outdated information from this rule. The removed language is no longer relevant because the health care for workers with disabilities program does not have an income limit.
Adopted	(c) Add together the net unearned and net earned income amounts and compare the total to the two-person SSI CNIL described in WAC 182-512-0010 <del>((or the two-person HWD standard described in WAC 182-505-0100 (1)(c)).</del> If the income is equal to or below the applicable two-person standard, the applicant is eligible for apple health CN health care coverage.	

If a preliminary cost-benefit analysis was prepared under RCW 34.05.328, a final cost-benefit analysis is available by contacting:

Name:

Address:

Phone:

Fax:

TTY:

Email:

Web site:

Other:

**Note: If any category is left blank, it will be calculated as zero.  
No descriptive text.**

**Count by whole WAC sections only, from the WAC number through the history note.  
A section may be counted in more than one category.**

**The number of sections adopted in order to comply with:**

Federal statute:	New	_____	Amended	_____	Repealed	_____
Federal rules or standards:	New	_____	Amended	_____	Repealed	_____
Recently enacted state statutes:	New	_____	Amended	_____	Repealed	_____

**The number of sections adopted at the request of a nongovernmental entity:**

New	_____	Amended	_____	Repealed	_____
-----	-------	---------	-------	----------	-------

**The number of sections adopted on the agency's own initiative:**

New	_____	Amended	_____	Repealed	_____
-----	-------	---------	-------	----------	-------

**The number of sections adopted in order to clarify, streamline, or reform agency procedures:**

New	_____	Amended	2	Repealed	_____
-----	-------	---------	---	----------	-------

**The number of sections adopted using:**

Negotiated rule making:	New	_____	Amended	_____	Repealed	_____
Pilot rule making:	New	_____	Amended	_____	Repealed	_____
Other alternative rule making:	New	_____	Amended	2	Repealed	_____

**Date Adopted:** March 1, 2024

**Name:** Wendy Barcus

**Title:** HCA Rules Coordinator

**Signature:**



**WAC 182-508-0001 Washington apple health—Coverage options for adults not eligible under MAGI methodologies.** (1) This chapter provides information on eligibility determinations for adults who:

(a) Need a determination of eligibility on the basis of being aged, blind, or disabled;

(b) Need a determination of eligibility based on the need for long-term institutional care or home and community-based services;

(c) Are excluded from coverage under a modified adjusted gross income (MAGI)-based program as referenced in WAC 182-503-0510 on the basis of medicare entitlement;

(d) Are not eligible for health care coverage under chapter 182-505 WAC due to citizenship or immigration requirements; or

(e) Are not eligible for health care coverage under chapter 182-505 WAC due to income which exceeds the applicable standard for coverage.

(2) The agency determines eligibility for Washington apple health (WAH) noninstitutional categorically needy (CN) coverage under chapter 182-512 WAC for an adult who is age 65 or older, or who meets the federal blind or disabled criteria of the federal SSI program, and:

(a) Meets citizenship/immigration, residency, and Social Security number requirements as described in chapter 182-503 WAC; and

(b) Has CN countable income and resources that do not exceed the income and resource standards in WAC 182-512-0010.

(3) The agency determines eligibility for WAH health care for workers with disabilities (HWD) CN coverage for adults who meet the requirements described in WAC 182-511-1050, as follows:

(a) Are age 16 (~~((through 64))~~) or older;

(b) Meet citizenship/immigration, residency, and Social Security number requirements as described in chapter 182-503 WAC;

(c) Meet the federal disability requirements described in WAC 182-511-1150; and

(d) Are employed full- or part-time (including self-employment) as described in WAC 182-511-1200.

(4) The agency determines eligibility for WAH long-term care CN coverage for adults who meet the institutional status requirements defined in WAC 182-513-1320 under the following rules:

(a) When the person receives coverage under a MAGI-based program and needs long-term care services in an institution, the agency follows rules described in chapter 182-514 WAC;

(b) When the person meets aged, blind, or disabled criteria as defined in WAC 182-512-0050 and needs long-term care services, the agency follows rules described in:

(i) Chapter 182-513 WAC, for an adult who resides in an institution; and

(ii) Chapter 182-515 WAC, for an adult who is determined eligible for WAH home and community-based waiver services.

(5) The agency determines eligibility for WAH noninstitutional CN or medically needy (MN) health care coverage for an adult who resides in an alternate living facility under rules described in WAC 182-513-1205.

(6) The agency determines eligibility for WAH-CN coverage under institutional rules described in chapters 182-513 and 182-515 WAC for an adult who:

(a) Has made a voluntary election of hospice services;

(b) Is not otherwise eligible for noninstitutional CN or MN health care coverage or for whom hospice is not included in the benefit service package available to the person; and

(c) Meets the aged, blind, or disabled criteria described in WAC 182-512-0050.

(7) The agency uses the following rules to determine eligibility for an adult under the WAH-MN program:

(a) Noninstitutional WAH-MN is determined under chapter 182-519 WAC for an adult with countable income that exceeds the applicable CN standard; and

(b) Non-SSI-related institutional WAH-MN long-term care coverage is determined under WAC 182-514-0263 for pregnant people and people age 20 and younger who:

(i) Meet institutional status requirements described in WAC 182-513-1320;

(ii) Do not meet blind or disabled criteria described in WAC 182-512-0050; and

(iii) Have countable income that exceeds the applicable CN standard.

(c) WAH-MN long-term care coverage is determined under WAC 182-513-1395 for an aged, blind, or disabled adult who resides in an institution and has countable income that exceeds the special income level (SIL).

(8) An adult is eligible for WAH-MN coverage when he or she:

(a) Meets citizenship/immigration, residency, and Social Security number requirements as described in WAC 182-503-0505;

(b) Has MN countable income that does not exceed the effective MN income standards in WAC 182-519-0050, or meets the excess income spenddown requirements in WAC 182-519-0110;

(c) Meets the countable resource standards in WAC 182-519-0050; and

(d) Is 65 years of age or older or meets the blind or disabled criteria of the federal SSI program.

(9) WAH-MN coverage is available for an aged, blind, or disabled ineligible spouse of an SSI recipient. See WAC 182-519-0100 for additional information.

(10) An adult who does not meet citizenship or alien status requirements described in WAC 182-503-0535 may be eligible for the WAH alien emergency medical program as described in WAC 182-507-0110.

(11) An adult is eligible for the state-funded medical care services (MCS) program when he or she meets the requirements under WAC 182-508-0005.

(12) A person who is entitled to medicare is eligible for coverage under a medicare savings program or the state-funded buy-in program when he or she meets the requirements described in chapter 182-517 WAC.

**WAC 182-512-0920 SSI-related medical—Deeming/allocation of income from nonapplying spouse.** The agency considers the income of financially responsible persons to determine if a portion of that income is available to other household members.

(1) A portion of the income of a nonapplying spouse is considered available to meet the needs of a Washington apple health SSI-related applicant. A nonapplying spouse is defined as someone who is:

(a) Financially responsible for the SSI-related applicant as described in WAC 182-506-0015 and 182-512-0960. For apple health institutional and home and community based waiver programs, see WAC 182-513-1315;

(b) Living in the same household with the SSI-related applicant;

(c) Not receiving a needs based payment such as temporary assistance to needy families (TANF) or state-funded cash assistance (SFA); or

(d) Not related to SSI, or is not applying for apple health coverage including spouses receiving SSI.

(2) An ineligible spouse is the spouse of an SSI cash recipient and is either not eligible for SSI for themselves or who has elected to not receive SSI cash so that their spouse may be eligible. An SSI-related applicant who is the ineligible spouse of an SSI cash recipient is not eligible for apple health categorically needy (CN) health care coverage and must be considered for health care coverage under the apple health medically needy (MN) program or for a modified adjusted gross income-based program if the person does not receive medicare.

(3) When determining whether a nonapplying spouse's income is countable, the agency:

(a) Follows the income rules described in WAC 182-512-0600 through 182-512-0780;

(b) Excludes income described in WAC 182-512-0800 (2) through (10), and all income excluded under federal statute or state law as described in WAC 182-512-0860;

(c) Excludes work-related expenses described in WAC 182-512-0840, with the exception that the ~~((sixty-five dollars))~~ \$65 plus one half earned income deduction described in WAC 182-512-0840(2) does not apply;

(d) Deducts any court ordered child support which the nonapplying spouse pays for a child outside of the home (current support or arrears); and

(e) Deducts any applicable child-related income exclusions described in WAC 182-512-0820.

(4) The agency allocates income of the nonapplying spouse to nonapplying children who reside in the home as described in WAC 182-512-0820. Allocations to children are deducted first from the nonapplying spouse's unearned income, then from their earned income.

(a) For apple health CN medical determinations, allocations to children are not allowed out of the income of the SSI-related applicant, only from the income of the nonapplying spouse.

(b) For apple health MN medical determinations, allocations to children are allowed from the income of the SSI-related applicant if the applicant is unmarried.

(5) For apple health SSI-related CN medical determinations, a portion of the countable income of a nonapplying spouse remaining after the deductions and allocations described in subsections (3) and (4) of this section may be deemed to the SSI-related applicant. If the nonapplying spouse's countable income is:

(a) Less than or equal to one-half of the federal benefit rate (FBR), no income is deemed to the applicant. Compare the applicant's countable income to the one-person SSI categorically needy income level (CNIL) described in WAC 182-512-0010. ~~((For health care for workers with disabilities (HWD) applicants, compare to the one-person HWD standard described in WAC 182-505-0100 (1)(e).))~~

(b) Greater than one-half of the FBR, then the entire nonapplying spouse's countable income is deemed to the applicant. Compare the applicant's income to the two-person SSI CNIL. ~~((For HWD applicants, compare to the two-person HWD standard described in WAC 182-505-0100 (1)(e).))~~

(6) When income is not deemed to the SSI-related applicant from the nonapplying spouse per subsection (5)(a) of this section ~~((+ (a)))~~, allow all allowable income deductions and exclusions as described in chapter 182-512 WAC to the SSI-related applicant's income ~~((+ and~~

~~((b)))~~, and compare the net remaining income to the one-person SSI CNIL ~~((or the one-person HWD standard))~~.

(7) When income is deemed to the SSI-related applicant from the nonapplying spouse per subsection (5)(b) of this section:

(a) Combine the applicant's unearned income with any unearned income deemed from the nonapplying spouse and allow one ~~((twenty dollar))~~ \$20 general income exclusion to the combined amount. If there is less than ~~((twenty dollars))~~ \$20 of unearned income, the remainder of the ~~((twenty dollar))~~ \$20 general income exclusion is deducted from earned income.

(b) Combine the applicant's earned income with any earned income deemed from the nonapplying spouse and allow the ~~((sixty-five dollar))~~ \$65 plus one half of the remainder earned income deduction (described in WAC 182-512-0840(2)) to the combined amount.

(c) Add together the net unearned and net earned income amounts and compare the total to the two-person SSI CNIL described in WAC 182-512-0010 ~~((or the two-person HWD standard described in WAC 182-505-0100 (1)(e)))~~. If the income is equal to or below the applicable two-person standard, the applicant is eligible for apple health CN health care coverage.

(8) An SSI-related applicant ~~((under the age of sixty-five))~~ who is working, whose level of work activity and earnings is determined not to be "substantial gainful activity" in accordance with all applicable Social Security disability determination rules and standards, but who is not eligible for apple health CN coverage under the regular apple health SSI-related program, may be considered for eligibility under the HWD program. For HWD program rules, see chapter 182-511 WAC.

(9) If the SSI-related applicant's countable income is above the applicable SSI CNIL standard, the agency or its authorized representative considers eligibility under the apple health MN program or under the HWD program if the person is ~~((under the age of sixty-five and))~~ working. An SSI-related applicant who meets the following criteria is not eligible for apple health MN coverage and eligibility must be determined under HWD or under a MAGI-based apple health program:

(a) The applicant is blind or disabled and, for a MAGI-based apple health program, under the age of ~~((sixty-five))~~ 65;



(b) The applicant's level of work activity and earnings is determined to be "substantial gainful activity" in accordance with all applicable Social Security disability determination rules and standards; and

(c) The applicant is not receiving a title II Social Security cash benefit based on blindness or disability.

(10) For SSI-related apple health MN medical determinations, a portion of the countable income of a nonapplying spouse remaining after the deductions and allocations described in subsections (3) and (4) of this section may be deemed to the SSI-related applicant. If the nonapplying spouse's countable income is:

(a) Less than or equal to the effective one-person MNIL described in WAC 182-519-0050, no income is deemed to the applicant and a portion of the applicant's countable income is allocated to the nonapplying spouse's income to raise it to the effective MNIL standard.

(b) Greater than the effective MNIL, then the amount in excess of the effective one-person MNIL is deemed to the applicant. Compare the applicant's income to the effective one-person MNIL.

(11) When income is not deemed to the SSI-related applicant from the nonapplying spouse per subsection (10)(a) of this section:

(a) Allocate income from the applicant to bring the income of the nonapplying spouse up to the effective one-person MNIL standard;

(b) Allow all allowable income deductions and exclusions as described in chapter 182-512 WAC to the SSI-related applicant's remaining income;

(c) Allow a deduction for medical insurance premium expenses (if applicable); and

(d) Compare the net countable income to the effective one-person MNIL.

(12) When income is deemed to the SSI-related applicant from the nonapplying spouse per subsection (10)(b) of this section:

(a) Combine the applicant's unearned income with any unearned income deemed from the nonapplying spouse and allow one (~~((twenty-dollar))~~) \$20 general income exclusion to the combined amount (if there is less than (~~((twenty-dollars))~~) \$20 of unearned income, the remainder of the (~~((twenty-dollar))~~) \$20 general income exclusion is deducted from earned income);

(b) Combine the applicant's earned income with any earned income deemed from the nonapplying spouse and allow the (~~((sixty-five-dollar))~~) \$65 plus one half of the remainder earned income deduction (described in WAC 182-512-0840(2)) to the combined amount;

(c) Add together the net unearned and net earned income amounts;

(d) Allow a deduction for medical insurance premium expenses (if applicable) per WAC 182-519-0100(5); and

(e) Compare the net countable income to the effective one-person MNIL described in WAC 182-519-0050. If the income is:

(i) Equal to or below the effective one-person MNIL, the applicant is eligible for apple health MN health care coverage with no spenddown.

(ii) Greater than the effective MNIL, the applicant is only eligible for apple health MN health care coverage after meeting a spend-down liability as described in WAC 182-519-0110.

(13) The ineligible spouse of an SSI-cash recipient applying for apple health MN coverage is eligible to receive the deductions and allocations described in subsection (10)(a) of this section.